\

LEARN « ENGAGE « BELONG

N

Sandhills Community College

Meeting Agenda
Board of Trustees Regular Meeting
Tuesday, December 2, 2025, | 3:30 PM
Location: Clement Dining Room, Dempsey Center

l. Call to Order

Presenter: Larry Caddell, Chairman
Ethics Statement:

In accordance with the State Government Ethics Act, Board members must avoid conflicts
of interest or appearances of conflict. Members should declare any known conflicts and
refrain from participation in the related matter.

Il. Recording of the Meeting

Presenter: Larry Caddell, Chairman

The meeting is being recorded solely for transcription purposes. The recording will not
become public record and will be deleted after one year.

HI. Prayer

Presenter: Bruce Hurst, Trustee



IV. Approval of the Agenda

Presenter: Larry Caddell, Chairman

V. Approval of Minutes
Presenter Larry Caddell, Chairman
Supporting 2025-10-07_BOTRegularMeetingMinutes.pdf
Documents

2025-10-07_BOTClosedSessionMinutes.pdf

V1. Program Presentation

Presenter

Sandy Stewart, President, Lindsey Farmer, Dean, Workforce Innovation
and Strategic Planning, Taylor McCaskill, Senior Director, Workforce
Strategy and Partnership, Jason Levister, Director of Workplace Learning,
Ed Spitler, Dean, Workforce & Applied Programs, Michelle Bauer, Vice
Provost of Instructional Programs, & Brian Garner, Department Chair,
Transportation Services and Professor, Automotive
Technology/Transportation Services and Coordinator, Collision Repair &
Refinishing

Summary

Highlight how Sandhills is working as One College through aligned
pathways, employer partnerships, work-based learning, and
collaboration across divisions.

VII. Board of Trustee Committee Reports

Student Government Association Report

Presenter

Nick Watts, SGA President

Summatry

Action
Requested

No

Supporting
Documents

Governance Committee Report

Old Business




Topic Policies Submitted for Board Review and Approval

Presenter David McLean, Chairman

Summary These policies are pending review and approval by the Board of
Trustees.

Action Yes

Requested

Supporting Policy 5.16—Employee Pay

Documents Summary: Recommend replacing “equity” with “comparison.”

Policy 5.22—Civility

Summary: Recommend archiving Policy 5.22.

Rationale: Policy 5.25 Employee Code of Conduct and Procedure
9.2.3 (Internet and Acceptable Use) cover similar content.

Policy 10.4—Campus Crime

Recommendation to archive Policy 10.4 and create Policy 10.13-
Campus Security with updated language reflecting security and
reporting requirements: 10.13 Campus Security

Policy 5.3 - Contractual Relationships

Summary: Recommendation to revise the language of Policy 5.3-
Contractual Relationships. Example revised language was reviewed
and discussed: 5.3 Contractual Relationships

New Business

Topic

New Policy Submission for Board Approval

Presenter

David Mclean, Chairman

Summary

Add new Policy 2.18
Revise Policy 4.3 title and language
Add new Policy 5.28

Rationale: The new policy references the public, students, and
employees. ltis cross-referenced in General (Section 2), Student
Services (Section 4), and Human Resources (Section 5).

Action
Requested

Yes




Supporting Americans with Disabilities
Documents Policy Comparison Chart
Topic Proposal to Implement a Consent Agenda
Presenter David McLean, Chairman
Summary The Consent Agenda is being introduced as a new tool to group
routine and non-controversial items for collective approval,
improving efficiency and focusing meeting time on substantive
discussion.
Action Yes
Requested
Supporting Consent Agenda Guidelines
Documents
Topic Bylaws
Presenter David McLean, Chairman
Summary Student Fees: Article Il, Section 6: Finance, Personnel, and Planning
Committee (p. 11)
Add as letter “g.”:
Establish local fees as defined in State Board Code of
Community Colleges (SBCCC) Chapter E, Student Tuition
and Fees.
Note: The current letters “g” through “o” will shift down and
become letters “h” through “p.”
Reference to Policy 3.4.1: Article IV, Section 1, Letter D (p. 19)
Remove reference to College Policy 3.4.1, as the Policy
does not correlate to the paragraph.
Consent Agenda: Article lll, Section 3, Letter B (p. 17)
If a consent agenda is adopted, the Board meeting agenda
could be updated to reflect the change.
Add “Consent Agenda” as letter “E.”
Note: If the Consent Agenda is added as letter E,
current letters “E” through “J” will shift down and
become letters “F” through “K.”
Action Yes

Requested




Supporting
Documents

The Sandhills Community College Board of Trustees Bylaws

Building and Grounds Committee Report

Old Business--None

New Business

Topic Workforce Trades Building Project Update

Presenter Tim Carpenter, Chairman

Summary This projectis in the desigh phase. LS3P has met with program
directors/leadership to further identify space, equipment, and
unique needs for the new building. Soil borings and a site survey are
underway.

Action None

Requested

Supporting None

Documents

New Business

Topic Caddell Center Building Project Update

Presenter Tim Carpenter, Chairman

Summary Preparation for the construction of the new building has started.
Removal of the modular unit has been completed. Site grading and
demolition of the concrete pad are underway.

Action None

Requested

Supporting None

Documents

New Business

Topic Second Floor Dempsey Renovation Update

Presenter Tim Carpenter, Chairman

Summary The addition of multiple offices is needed on the second floor of the
Dempsey Center, inside the Ewing Leadership Wing, to relocate the
Student Services advising and Career & College Promise (dual-
enrolled students) departments and better serve students.

Action None

Requested




Supporting
Documents

None

New Business

Topic Caddell Center Easement Update

Presenter Tim Carpenter, Chairman

Summary Discussion regarding easement at the Caddell Center
Action No

Requested

Supporting None

Documents

New Business

Topic Resolution for Facilities Use

Presenter Tim Carpenter, Chairman

Summary Discussion and adoption of a resolution for facilities usage.
Action Yes

Requested

Supporting None

Documents

Finance, Personnel & Planning Committee Report

Old Business: None

New Business

Topic Finance Report Update

Presenter Gene Horne, Chairman

Summary Sandhills Community College has expended approximately 31% of
total State Funds and 37% of County Funds through October 31,
2025. Spending levels across all categories are consistent with
expected activity for this point in the fiscal year.

Action No

Requested

Supporting Finance Report October 31, 2025.pdf

Documents




Topic County Bonds Update

Presenter Gene Horne, Chairman

Summary Sandhills Community College has expended $128,485.19 of County
Bond Funds for the Caddell Center Classroom Building project as of
October 31, 2025. There are $971,514.81 of County Bond Funds
remaining for the project.

Action No

Requested

Supporting Status of State and County Bond Funds 10-31-25.pdf

Documents

Topic OSBM Update

Presenter Gene Horne, Chairman

Summary As of October 31, 2025, the college has expended $146,555 of the
$25 million appropriation from the NC General Assembly for the
Moore Innovative High School/Workforce Trades project. Interest
accrued as of October 31, 2025, is $1,309,088.15.

Action No

Requested

Supporting OSBM Report November 2025.pdf

Documents

Topic FY25 Financial Statements Review Update

Presenter Gene Horne, Chairman

Summary Zach Rogers of the NC Office of the State Auditor reviewed the FY25
financial statements at the college’s request. This review was requested
due to the result of the FY24 audit. The review did not note any
significant concerns and items noted were either immaterial or
superficial. The Financial Services Department found the review to be
beneficial and appreciated the constructive feedback.

Action No

Requested

Supporting None

Documents




Topic 25-26 SCC Budget 2-1 Approval and Signature

Presenter Gene Horne, Chairman

Summary The NCCCS 2-1 form has been completed and submitted by the college.
This worksheet provides a summary of revenues and expenditures,
excluding capital improvement projects, by budget source for FY2025-
26. The NCCCS requires each community college board of trustees to
approve their respective college’s annual operating budget.

Action Yes

Requested

Supporting 25.26 2-1 Summary Page.pdf

Documents FY2025-26_DCC2-1_SignaturePage.pdf

Topic Personnel: New Hires & Employee Separations

Presenter Gene Horne, Chairman

Summary Sandhills Community College continues to experience steady personnel
activity across divisions, with several key hires supporting operations,
student services, and academic functions. Turnover remains low, with
only a few separations and several upcoming retirements across the
College.
New hires reflect strategic needs in HVAC maintenance, IT
infrastructure, library services, student support, and the Small Business
Center.
Retirements include long-serving faculty and staff in Learning
Resources, Business Technology, IT, and Maintenance.
Separations are minimal and limited to isolated positions in Academic
Programs and Engagement.

Action No

Requested

Supporting Bd December 2 2025 Info Items (1).pdf

Documents

Educational Programs & Student Affairs Committee Report

Old Business: None

New Business




Topic

Continuing Education Accountability & Integrity

Presenter

Billy Carter, Chairman

Summary

North Carolina community colleges are required to maintain a
Continuing Education Accountability and Integrity Plan (A&l Plan)
under 1D SBCCC 300.4(a). This plan documents how each college
ensures quality, effectiveness, compliance, and continuous
improvement across all Continuing Education programs. The Board
of Trustees must approve the plan every three years.

Sandhills’ current A&| Plan covers calendar years 2023-2025 and is
scheduled for renewal beginning January 2026. The College
proposes shifting to a three-year reporting cycle aligned with the
fiscal year (July 1-June 30) to better match the College Strategic
Plan.

Kimberly Blue is serving on a statewide NCCCS committee currently
reviewing this accountability requirement. The committee’s findings
will inform and strengthen Sandhills’ upcoming plan revision.

Approval Requested:

Extend the current A&l Plan, originally approved in Fall 2022,
through June 30, 2026, allowing time to develop a revised plan
aligned with the new July—June cycle. The new plan would take
effect July 1, 2026.

Action
Requested

Yes

Supporting
Documents

Sandhills.Acct.IntegrityPlanApproved.2023-2025.pdf

Topic

NC Reconnect

Presenter

Billy Carter, Chairman

Summary

Mr. Williams shared an update on NC Reconnect, a statewide
initiative funded by the John M. Belk Endowment to support adult
learners returning to college. The program focuses on helping adults
reconnect with Sandhills to complete or continue their education.




Sandhills has been selected as part of Cohort 6, a small group of
five colleges participating this year. Although the program is funded
for one year, it will provide new strategies and insights that the
College can continue using to improve adult learner engagement
and re-enrollment.

Action No

Requested

Supporting None

Documents

Topic Manufacturing Week

Presenter Billy Carter, Chairman

Summary During the last week in October, 250 students participated in
Manufacturing Week. Among other activities, local Moore and Hoke
County businesses brought items to the campus that are
manufactured in those counties for the first annual “Best Thing
Made in Moore and Hoke Counties (MoHoCo)” contest.

Action No

Requested

Supporting None

Documents

Topic Small Business Center

Presenter Billy Carter, Chairman

Summary Sara Holden has joined the College as the new Director of the Small
Business Center and has already scheduled a Small Business class
at the Hoke Center.

Action No

Requested

Supporting 2025-12-02_Sara HoldenSmall Business Center Director (2).pdf

Documents

Topic EPP Residency Programs

Presenter Billy Carter, Chairman




Summary EPP Residency Programs — Several New to the System Educator
Preparation Program (EPP) Residency Certificates will be submitted
to the State Board by the NCCCS for review and approval. We are
seeking approval from the BOT to engage in the planning process for
these certificates.

¢ Birth through Kindergarten Residency Licensure Certificate
¢ High School Math Residency Licensure Certificate

¢ High School Science Residency Licensure Certificate

¢ Middle School Math Residency Licensure Certificate

¢ Middle School Science Residency Licensure Certificate

e Special Education Residency Licensure Certificate

Action Yes

Requested

Supporting

Documents

VIil. Foundation Report

Presenter Jennifer Dail, Senior Director, Development

Supporting 2025-12-02 Foundation Report - Board of Trustees .pdf

Documents

IX. President’s Report

Presenter Dr. Sandy Stewart, President

Supporting

Documents

X. Other Business

Presenter

Larry Caddell, Chairman

Supporting
Documents




Xl. Trustee Comments

XIl. Closed Session

The Board will enter Closed Session pursuantto N.C.G.S. § 143-318.11(a)(3) to consult
with legal counsel regarding matters subject to attorney-client privilege.

XIil. Adjournment



IVA
EN

LEARN « ENGAGE « BELONG

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF SANDHILLS COMMUNITY COLLEGE
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Clement Dining Room

October 7, 2025, 2:30 p.m.

PRESENT: Trustees Larry Caddell, Chairman; Tim Carpenter, Vice Chairman; Gene Horne;
Irish Pickett; Billy Carter; BethAnn Pratte; Stephen Woodward; David McLean; Mike Freidel,
Bruce Hurst; Richard Maness; Nicholas Watts, SGA President

ABSENT: Dell Cook, Joe Clendenin

BOARD ATTORNEY: John May, Robbins, May & Rich

STAFF: Dr. Sandy Stewart; Dr. Julie Voigt; Dr. Rebecca Roush; Dr. D.J. Farmer; Dr.
Germaine Elkins; Dr. Michelle Bauer; Mary Bridschge; Chad Williams; Lindsey Farmer;
Teresa Sheets; Karen Walker; Tess Regan; Jennifer Pearce, Jessica Locklear, Carlos
McCormick, Dave Daniels, Taylor Murphy, Jen Fields, Shenika Ward; Stephanie Miller,
Taylor McCaskill, Jason Levister

UESTS: Matt Lamb, The Pilot Newspaper; Tina Hlabse, Ramseur Maultsby LLP

2}

|

Mr. Caddell called the meeting to order at 2:30 p.m. He read the statute regarding conflicts
of interest to the Trustees and asked the Board if there were any potential conflicts with the
agenda items to be discussed. Hearing none, Mr. Caddell proceeded to the next item of
business.

Mr. Hurst offered a moment of prayer.

Mr. MclLean made a motion to change the name of the Governance Committee Chairman
to David MclLean. Mr. Horne seconded the motion, and the motion passed unanimously.




on October 7, 2025, to the Board of Trustees agenda. Mr. Horne seconded the motion, and
the motion passed unanimously.

Mr. Carpenter made a motion to add to the Buildings and Grounds Committee report an
update to show the selection of a general contractor for the Caddell building, and to
include under items for approval the selection of the general contractor. Mr. Horne

seconded the motion, and the motion passed unanimously.

Ms. Pratte made 3 motion to engage in a discussion during the Board of Trustees meeting

regarding the inclusion of Trustee email addresses on the Sandhills Community College

{SCC) website. Mr. Horne seconded the motion, and the motion passed unanimously.

Mr. Horne made a motion to approve the minutes of August 5, 2025, Board of Trustees
meeting. Mr. Carpenter seconded the motion, and the motion passed unanimously.

Workforce Innovation and Strategic Plan

Lindsey Farmer, Dean of Workforce Innovation and Strategic Planning, shared that a new
Center for Workforce Innovation & Strategic Planning has been created. This process is
nine months in the making and there is no other model in the NC Community College
system that compares. Using a new and different approach, the model is focused on
expanding opportunities for our students and our communities. It is different in that two
teams have merged to create the Center for Workforce Innovation and Strategic Planning.
The teams include Workplace Development and Corporate Partnerships, Apprenticeships
and Workplace Learning under the direction of Jason Levister, and Access to Achievement
and Career Placement. The team also incorporates N.C. Edge/Customized Training, led by
Director Dr. Carlos McCormick, and the Small Business Center. The entire team is led by
Senior Director of Workforce and Corporate Partnerships, Taylor McCaskill. In 2024, eleven
forums were held throughout Moore and Hoke Counties, and the outcomes of the forums
were truly insightful. SCC leaders answered questions and heard needs and concerns of
attendees. The Center for Workforce Innovation & Strategic Planning will address
community needs to create opportunities through apprenticeships and partnerships with
local businesses and agencies, creating stronger community relationships.

Student Government Report

Mr. Watts presented the Student Government Association (SGA) report. SGA leaders
participated in a special 9/11 memorial event. Attendees included students from

the SCC Fire Academy, EMS, and BLET programs. SGA held resource fairs to connect
students with campus clubs, learning opportunities, and social engagements. Students
were gifted booklets to inspire individuals to learn more about the U.S. Constitution and to
develop a greater civic responsibility. Preparations are ongoing for the October 22, 2025,




Wild West Fall Fest sponsored by the SGA. New student clubs include the American Sign
Language, Frisbee, and Finance and Investment Society Clubs. The 2025-2026 goal for
students through SGA participation is to empower, engage, and encourage students
throughout their journey as an SCC student.

Governance Committee Report
Mr. McLean reported that the Governance Committee met on September 8, 2025. The
committee reviewed policies for approval, as presented below by Dr. Voigt:

SCC Policy 4.6 — Student Grievance

Policy 1.14 — Accreditation

Policy 1.1 — Mission Statement

Policy 2.1 — Equal Opportunity & Non-Discrimination

Policy 2.17 - Commitment to Diversity

Policies 4.14 & 5.17 - Discrimination and Harassment

Mr. McLean made a motion to approve the policies as presented. Mr. Horne seconded the

Items Requiring Approval - Policy Changes (First Reading)
Requested for Approval in December

Policy 5.16 — Employee Pay

Policy 5.22 — Civility

Policy 10.4 — Campus Crime

Policy 5.3 — Contractual Relationships

Mr. MclLean made a motion to approve the first reading of the policy changes. Mr. Horne
seconded the motion, and the motion passed unanimously.

The Governance Committee held a special meeting on October 1, 2025. The committee
reviewed the agenda for the BOT Retreat. Dr. Stewart presented a document entitled Board
of Trustees Responsibilities and Governance Framework, to include Trustee expectations
of the Board. The floor opened for discussion regarding governance matters and Board of
Trustee bylaws, “Article 4, Section 1, Trustee Expectations of the Board.” During this
portion of the meeting concerns were raised regarding the recent actions of a Trustee on
two separate occasions. The committee believes that both actions were contrary to Article
4, Section 1, of the bylaws. One action was a comment made during a public committee
meeting, in front of SCC staff regarding disciplinary action of an SCC employee. The
second action involved direct communication via email with a parent regarding another
personnel issue. After review, it was determined that action such as this placed the college
in a liability situation regarding taking personnel action. The Trustee was present at the
committee meeting, and these concerns were addressed directly with him. The meeting



was concluded with a reminder that the President is responsible for the overall
administration and management of the college and that any concerns a Trustee may have
should be addressed to President Stewart and/or Chairman Caddell and not include staff
members of Sandhills Community College.

Buildings and Grounds Committee Report

Mr. Carpenter reported that the Buildings and Grounds Committee met on October 6,
2025. Sanford Contractors was chosen to begin work on the Caddell Training Center
additions. A total of thirteen companies submitted bids for the work. Sanford Contractors
submitted a favorable set of construction documents. The work wilt be performed within
budget. Construction is scheduled to begin in November 2025. Mr. Carpenter made a
motion to award the Caddell classroom construction to Sanford Contractors for

Mr. Carpenter reported that SCC has officially entered into a contract with LS3P Architects
to design the Moore Innovative High School (MIHS). The design contract is a $25M project.
Design fee of $1.684,900.00, with a 9-to-12-month design period.

Dr. Farmer presented the following updates:

e Storm Impact and Pond Repairs - Sanford Contractors performed repair, building
the site back to original specifications, with a more robust spillway. $51,343.72.
Funding for repairs came from the county budget.

e Dempsey Center Bookstore — Renovations have been made to the former bookstore
to include dismantling the original infrastructure, adding three offices, new flooring,
and paint. The area will become the new Student Life Department. The area will
draw more student traffic and will eventually incorporate game-room activities.
Expected occupancy is November 2025.

Finance Committee Report
Mr. Horne reported that the Finance Committee met on September 16, 2025. Mr. Horne
then requested approval for the following items:

Reclassification of Uncollectable Student Accounts - Mr. Horne made a motion to
reclassify uncollectable student debts in the amount of $66,605.48. Mr. Hunt seconded
the motion, and the motion passed unanimously.




new English 025 course fee of $23.00. Mr. Carpenter seconded the motion, and the motion
passed unanimously.

Athletics Budget 2025-2026 - Mr. Horne made a motion to approve the Foundation-funded
2025-2026 Athletics Budget of $293.460.00. Mr. Maness seconded the motion, and the
motion passed unanimously.

Dr. Farmer presented the following updates:

Budget Status - The College has not received the FY25 budget and is operating under a
continuation budget. There will be an increased budget FY26.

County Budgets - Both Moore and Hoke counties are reported to be in good standing as of
August 30, 2025.

County Bonds - As of August 2025, $118,429.25 was spent towards the Caddell Training
Center project.

OSBM Report (Moore Innovative High School/Workforce Trades) - As of October 2025,
$146,555.00 of the $25M allocated funding has been spent.

The new County budget will be reviewed at the December Board of Trustees meeting.

Personnel Committee Report
Full-Time Faculty Appointments for Board Approval -

Mr. Horne made a motion to approve the hiring of Jessica Cross, Visual Arts Instructor,
effective 8.18.25. Ms. Pickett seconded the motion, and the motion passed unanimously.

Mr. Horne made a motion to approve the Holiday schedule for 2026/2027. Mr. Freidel
seconded the motion, and the motion passed unanimously.

Updates: New Hires, Separations, and Transfers -

Personnel Information Updates - Mr. Horne asked that the Board review the New Hires,
Separations, and Transfers as submitted. No Board action required.

Discussion ensued regarding the aspects of Performance Contracting. Dr. Farmer
responded to Mr. Woodward’s request for information, offering specific details of the
energy-saving plan to include guaranteed savings for the College.



Planning Committee Report

Dean Farmer presented the revised draft of the 2025 Annual Report of the College Strategic
Pltan (CSP). Mr. Horne made a motion to approve the 2025 CSP Annual Report as
presented. Ms. Pratte seconded the motion, and the motion passed unanimously.

Educational Programs and Student Affairs Committees
Mr. Carter reported that the Educational and Student Affairs Committee met on September
11, 2025. There were no actionable items.

Dr. Roush submitted the following updates:

Cooperative & Innovative High School -

Dr. Roush presented an update, noting the September 3, 2025, ribbon cutting of the Moore
County Innovative (MIHS). State legislature has approved the funding for MIHS. Moore
County will receive their allocation for the support of the new school. Bi-weekly meetings
continue with Moore County Schools. MIHS Principal Ashley Ciccone reports that interim
report cards show that all students are passing. Students are also engaging with programs
on the SCC campus to include Culinary and Engineering and will participate in Funfest and
Career Day.

Career & College Ready Pathway (Learn Updates) -

Plans are to implement a new Career and College Pathway. This will allow high school
students who are below the 2.8 GPA to enrollin pre-curriculum classes. Meeting this week
with Moore County Schools leadership to make decisions as to envision what this might
look like for spring. Meeting with Hoke County Schools to discuss implementation on the
Hoke Campus as well.

Workforce Continuing Education -

Last year the Board approved the move of Ophthalmic Medical Assisting from curriculum
into the Workforce Continuing Education (WCE) program. There are currently nine students
enrolled who will become certified technicians. SCC’s partnership with Carolina Eye
Associates continues to benefit from this program.

The State has approved a way for community colleges to offer WCE courses to students
from private and homeschool locations. Prior to this approval, public school students only
were offered these courses.

Student Services -
Mr. Williams reported that the System Office has published findings for the period 2024-
2025 reporting year, which is summer 2024, fall 2024, and spring 2025. SCC shows a



2%increase as compared to last year with 11,049 unduplicated students. The dual
enroliment numbers for the same reporting year are at 7.5% growth. Summer 2025 is up
18% over the previous summer. Registration for October classes continues. WCE classes
are currently at 20% over last fall.

Aluly 29, 2025, Veteran’s compliance review, showed no discrepancies were found. Mr.
Williams thanked Dave Daniels, Coordinator of Veteran’s Services, for his commitment to
excellence.

Student Government Association & Student Life -

Mr. Williams reported that during the Educational Committee meeting, the committee
reviewed the list of anticipated Student Life/SGA activities as provided by the Director of
Student Life, Ms. Dana Cuellar.

Workforce Innovation & Strategic Planning -

Dean Farmer presented an update regarding SCC’s relationship with Pennsylvania
Transformer Technology (PTT), located in Hoke County. SCC has entered a 3-year project
with them through their customized training program, NC Edge. PTT requested a focus on
leadership training with their employees. Through the SCC partnership, a lean
manufacturing training course has been developed for its employees. Three
apprenticeships are waiting for approval at the state level — electrician, production
technologist, and welding.

Ms. Pratte asked that trustees add their email address to the SCC website. Ms. Pratte feels
that the addition of contact information will demonstrate that the Board is open to hearing
concerns while leaving management to college administration. Ms. Pratte made a motion
to add Trustee’s SCC email addresses to the SCC website. Mr. Woodward seconded the
motion. The motion failed by a vote of 2-10.

Foundation Report

Dr. Elkins presented the Foundation Report, calling attention to the material included in
the Board packet, the Foundation Report and SCCF Trustees Report Opportunity and
Excellence.

Giving last fiscal year was just over $3.1M with 1,127 gifts. The fiscal year to date has now
reached over $1M, from 361 gifts. Dr. Elkins reported total assets of over $60M, and
detailed the restricted, unrestricted, and scholarship funds. The August 2025 Coca Cola
Classic Golf Tournament raised $52,550.00, which marked the first time breaking $1Min
net proceeds throughout the history of the tournaments. The Health and Fitness Science
programs held a 5k Run on September 27, 2025. The Foundation is engaging in new data
management software and witl convert to the new system within the next 2 months.
Jennifer Dail has been working to mail scholarship reports to donors, which includes a
profile about students that are being supported through their giving. Jennifer has also been




active with NC Cord Group and has been elected as their representative to the NCCC
Foundation Board. A scholarship dinner is planned for November 4th at the Carolina Hotel.
Currently working on the next annual campaign mailing impact brochure. SCC won “Best
of the Pines” in five categories. Everyone is invited to stroll through the Horticultural
Gardens to enjoy the many scarecrows that have been fashioned by local garden clubs.
The scarecrows will be on display until the end of October. The Hoke Campus is gearing up
to host the annual “Trunk or Treat” event, to be held on October 25, 2025, beginning at 3:00
p-m. on the Hoke Campus. Tito Ward, SCC Athletic Director, will attend the December BOT
meeting and will introduce new students. The SCC Women’s Volleyball Team is 26-2
overall. Dr. Elkins noted that included in the Board packet were special Foundation
reports.

The President’s Report

Sandhills Community College continues to be recognized as a leader in workforce and
economic development across North Carolina. At the September 2025 State Board
Summit, Dr. Stewart was one of three college presidents selected to speak. At the most
recent meeting of the NC Community College President’s Association, Dr. Stewart was
also elected to a second term as legislative chair of the association.

At the State Board Summit, Legislative leaders Sen. Brad Overcash and Rep. David Willis
reaffirmed the central role of community colleges in the state’s economic strategy,
highlighting the new Propel NC business model, which will align course offerings with labor
market needs, enhance credit mobility, and integrate with the upcoming Workforce Pell
program.

A key highlight from the Summit was the presentation of Propel NC workforce sector data
for North Carolina, underscoring the scale of opportunity for Sandhills and our region:

« Healthcare I: 14,633 annual openings; $63,714 average earnings

e Engineering & Advanced Manufacturing: 2,998 openings; $59,598 average earnings

« Trades & Transportation: 71,477 openings; $53,428 average earnings

» Public Safety & First Responders: 7,755 openings; $54,421 average earnings
Information Technology: 5,377 openings; $53,560 average earnings

Sandhills is positioning itself to leverage state funding and expand short-term, stackable
credential programs, especially with the development of our Workforce Innovation Building
and the Moore Innovative High School. Our alignment with legislative priorities strengthens
our case for continued state and local investment.

The 2025 State Board Summit reinforced that North Carolina’s community colleges are the
backbone of workforce development and economic mobility. For Sandhills Community
College, some key takeaways are:
+ Stay aligned with Propel NC priorities and continue advancing dual enrollment and
CTE pathways.



» Leverage SCC’s next capital campaign to expand programs in high-demand
sectors.

» Build on Al and cybersecurity innovation to position SCC at the forefront of
emerging workforce needs.

» Continue strengthening partnerships with K-12, business, and government to
deliver on the promise of “Learn, Engage, Belong.”

Community College Trends —~ Insights from Dr. Laura Ulrich

Dr. Laura Ulrich, Senior Economist with Indeed and formerly with the Richmond Federal
Reserve, has conducted extensive research on community colleges across the Southeast.
At the State Board Summit, Dr. Ulrich reported that statewide community college
enrollment is rising, particularly in health sciences, skilled trades, and dual enrollment.
However, challenges remain, including declining international enrollment and shifting
student preferences toward shorter-term stackable credentials.

She also noted the growing impact of artificial intelligence on program delivery and
workforce training. Sandhills is well-positioned to respond, with ongoing investments in
scalable, high-demand programs and a robust framework for stackable credentials.

Campus Events & Engagement Highlights

Sandhills Community College has remained active and visible across campus, the
community, and the state, living out our mission of “Learn, Engage, Belong.” The academic
year launched with a reaffirmation of the One College model, featuring Dr. David Shockley,
President of Surry Community College as the Opening Day speaker. This fully integrated
approach to instruction and engagement supports student success in both employment
and transfer.

Progress in the evolution of the One College model this fall included 40 office moves
across seven buildings, new dean and department head hires, more than 200 community
engagement events, increased apprenticeships and customized training agreements, SCC
Gardens and Lifelong Learning expansions, student life initiatives, and continued
improvements in HR/finance.

Recent events have brought the campus and community together. The 9/11 Day of
Remembrance drew more than 250 participants for a solemn ceremony at the First
Responders Memorial. Constitution Day and Spirit Day engaged students in civic learning
and campus pride, while the Pink-Out Volleyball Game raised awareness for breast cancer
and filled the stands with pink.

The Walk to End Alzheimer’s, hosted on the Pinehurst campus, welcomed over 1,500
participants and surpassed the fundraising goal with more than $200,000 raised to support
North Carolinians affected by the disease. The Flyers 5K Fun run, Scarecrow Stoll, and the
children’s story time events further strengthened campus and community connections.



Academic support remains a priority, with the Tutoring Center providing 1,948 sessions
since Fall 2024 - 1,568 in-person and 380 online - with an average session length of 57
minutes. Students who used tutoring achieved an 87% pass rate, with highest demand in
MAT-171, MAT-152, and ENG-111.

Looking ahead, MoHoCo Manufacturing Week will run October 20-24, highlighting local
manufacturing and student engagement opportunities. Arts and culture will be celebrated
with the SCC Jazz Band and Taylor Swift tribute performances in BPAC.

Workforce Pell Program

Congress recently expanded Pell Grant eligibility to short-term workforce training
programs, with implementation anticipated in summer 2027. Workforce Pell will cover
programs between 150 and 600 clock hours in high-demand fields like healthcare, IT, and
skilled trades. Eligible programs must meet strict completion and job placement rates, be
accredited, and align with state workforce priorities.

Federal rules for Workforce Pell are still under development, and a federal advisory
committee will be appointed to write the program’s regulations. North Carolina is working
with our Congressional delegation to ensure at least one NC Community College president
represents our state on the committee.

Sandhills will likely need to redesign some offerings and enhance outcome tracking to
meet these new federal standards, positioning the college to further support local
workforce needs.

Athletics Update

The Flyers women’s volleyball team continues to excel, currently ranked #2 in the country
in NJCAA Division Ill with just two losses of the season. On October 6, the Flyers notched a
3-1 victory at home against Richard Bland College in the annual Pink-Out Game for breast
cancer awareness. This marked the program’s first-ever win over Richard Bland, who
entered the match ranked #15 in NJCAA Division ll. The Flyers’ success builds on a
tradition of athletic excellence and community engagement.

Sandhills athletics remains an important recruitment and retention tool, with more than
fifty student-athletes maintaining some of the highest GPAs on campus and contributing to
campus life. In August, Joshua “Tito” Ward was appointed Athletic Director, succeeding
longtime AD and championship-winning coach Mike Apple. Ward, a Fayetteville native and
FSU Hall of Fame inductee, brings deep experience in athletics fundraising, community
engagement, and student support. He has served as an assistant coach at Fayetteville
State University and as director of student-athlete development, emphasizing character,
community, and opportunity in SCC athletics.

Pond Repairs and infrastructure Update

10



In September 2025, the upper pond spillway at the Sandhills Pinehurst Campus sustained
major damage during Tropical Storm Chantal. Emergency repairs and additional
maintenance were completed on both ponds to ensure long-term safety and resilience of
the campus environment. These efforts reflect the college’s commitment to preserving its
natural resources and maintaining a safe and welcoming campus for students and the
community.

Trustee Tim Carpenter, Executive Vice President, D.J. Farmer, and Facilities Director,
Steven Garner, were commended for their leadership in restoring these vital resources.
Their swift action and coordination helped minimize disruption and reinforced the
college’s proactive approach to facilities management.

SACSCOC Re-Affirmation Team

In late September, Dr. Stewart served on a SACSCOC on-site review team for South
Georgia Technical College (SGTC). Which has its main campus in Americus, GA. This was a
10-year review, similar to what Sandhills had in 2023. Serving on the review team was a
valuable experience from the perspective of seeing accreditation from the perspective of
the accreditor as well as being able to observe in detail the operations and governance of a
community college in another state. While this report does not allow a full recap, it is worth
making two observations. First, SACSCOC as an accrediting body is evolving to provide
robust, yet fair accrediting services for community colleges, especially those more
focused on technical programs. Second, SGTC has an advanced model for corporate
partnerships from which SCC can learn. Dr. Stewart will look deeper into these topics at
the request of the Board of Trustees.

Ms. Pratte requested that the substitutes for committee members be reviewed in the
future. Mr. Caddell agreed to the future discussion.

Mr. Carpenter made a motion pursuant to G.S. 143-318.11 to go into closed session to
consult with legal council regarding matters subject to attorney-client privileges. Mr.
MclLean seconded the motion, and the motion passed unanimously.

CLOSED SESSION

At 4:30 p.m. on October 7, during the regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of
Trustees (“the Board”) of Sandhills Community College (“SCC?”), held in the Clement
Dining Room on the SCC campus, the Board voted to enter Closed Session to discuss
personnel matters.

MOTION: Trustee Carpenter moved to enter Closed Session at 4:30 p.m. pursuant to
N.C.G.S. 143-318.11(a)(6) to discuss personnel matters and to consult with the College’s
attorney. Trustee McLean seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously.

11



Upon conclusion of the discussion, Chairman Caddell asked for a motion to return to
Open Session. Trustee Freidel made the motion, seconded by Trustee McLean, and the
motion carried unanimously.

The Board reconvened in Open Session at 5:07 p.m. No action was taken during Closed
Session.

4‘&. ™M. W) ey
<7

John M. May, Attorney for Sandhills Community College

With no further business, the Board of Trustees meeting was adjourned at 5:08 pm.

Respectfully submitted,

Larry Caddell, Chairman of the Board

Joseph Clendenin, Secretary of the Board

12



IVA
o 3

LEARN « ENGAGE - BELONG

Sandhills Community College Board of Trustees

Closed Session Meeting Minutes

Clement Dining Room

October 7, 2025, 4:30 p.m.

CLOSED SESSION

At 4:30 p.m. on October 7th, during the regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of
Trustees (“the Board”) of Sandhills Community College (“SCC”), held in the Sledge Dining
Room on the SCC campus, the Board voted to enter Closed Session to discuss personnel

matters.

MOTION: Trustee Carpenter moved to enter Closed Session at 4:30 p.m. pursuant to
N.C.G.S. § 143-318.11(a)(6) to discuss personnel matters and to consult with the College’s
attorney. Trustee MclLean seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously.

Upon conclusion of the discussion, Chairman Caddell asked for a motion to return to
Open Session. Trustee Freidel made the motion, seconded by Trustee McLean, and the
motion carried unanimously.

The Board reconvened in Open Session at 5:07 p.m. No action was taken during Closed ‘
Session.

John M. May
Attorney for Sandhills Community College




Date: October 7, 2025



SANDHILLS ADMINISTRATIVE
COMMUNITY COLLEGE CAMPUS SECURITY

- ____ 0 ______ __ — 0 —————
T e R R R EEEEEEE——————————————n\

The College is committed to providing a safe and secure environment for all members of the
College’s community and visitors. The College shall comply with the Crime Awareness and
Security Act of 1990, as amended by the Jeanne Clery Disclosure of Campus Security Policy and
Campus Crime Statistics Act.

Adopted:

Legal Reference: 20 U.S.C. § 1092(f); 34 C.F.R. § 668.46; The Handbook for Campus Safety and
Security  Reporting (U.S. Department of Education, available at:
http:/www2.ed.gov/admins/lead/safety/handbook.pdf)

D ——————————— e
COMMUNITY COLLEGE POLICY MANUAL Page 1 of 1



HUMAN RESOURCES
SCC COMMUNITY CONTRACTUAL
COLLEGE RELATIONSHIP

POLICY
5.3

Adopted:

Employees of Sandhills Community College are employed by contract or on an at-will basis at
the discretion of the President. If employed by contract, full-time personnel to whom the College
does not intend to issue a new contract will be notified by-JFunel-ofthe-yearef prior to the
expiration of the existing contract. Part-time employees are employed on a semester to semester
or six-month basis and are not guaranteed employment beyond the expiration date of their
current contract. Since employees of the College are employed for the duration of their contracts
only, failure to receive a new contract is not subject to the College Grievance Procedures unless
the employee alleges discrimination.

The President, at his/her discretion, may make the advance notice null and void in instances of
employee sub-standard performance, misconduct, or otherwise egregious offenses.



SANDHILLS DRAFT

COMMUNITY COLLEGE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES POLICY

Adpoted:

2.18/4.3/5.28

The College shall comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, As Amended
("ADA"). To achieve compliance, the College shall:

1.

2.

Provide notices concerning the ADA.

Designate a responsible employee to coordinate ADA compliance.

Ensure that existing facilities are readily accessible to or usable by individuals with
disabilities through structural changes in facilities or through other methods that are
equally effective to make services, programs and activities accessible.

Eliminate eligibility criteria that screens out or tends to screen out individuals with
disabilities or any class of individuals with disabilities from fully and equally enjoying
any service, program or activity being offered.

Administer services, programs, and activities in the most integrated setting appropriate
to the needs of qualified individuals with disabilities.

Take appropriate steps to ensure that communications with persons who are disabled
are as effective as communications with others, including the furnishing of appropriate
auxiliary aids and services.

The College may from time to time engage in an accessibility audit of its facilities and programs.

The College will maintain the self-evaluation and make it available to the public for three (3) years.

All allegations concerning disability discrimination or harassment shall be addressed through
Policy 5.17 — Discrimination and Harassment (employees) or Policy 4.14 — Discrimination and
Harassment (students).

Legal Reference: 42 U.C.S. § 12101, P.L. 110-325



‘SIBYI0 YUM SUOHNEOIUNWILIOD SEB SAN03)S se
ale pajgqesip ale oym suossad Yyiim suonesiunwwos
eyl ainsuse o013 sdeoys oleudoidde  sye|

"Sa)jigesIp yum sienpiaipul payiienb
J0 sposu sy 01 8jeudosdde Bumas pajeidejul jsow
9U3 Ul ssliANoe pue ‘swielgold ‘saoinias JelsIuipy

‘paiayo guisq
Aanoe 1o weidosd ‘souss Aue Suifofus Apenbs
pue Apny woiy seniqesip Yum SjenpIAIpUI JO SSejo
Aue 10 sonijgesip Yum SjenpiAlpul 10 ud81as 0}
SPU®}.10 N0 SUSS1OS 1.y} BUBIO AINIqISHe 81 ulng

*91q1SS9098 saniAloe pue sweigoid
‘S99IAI9S B¥eW 01 3A110948 Ajjenba ale Jey) spoylew
Jaylo ysnouyy 10 sannoey ul sesueyd jeIn1oNIS
ysnoiys ssnnigesip Yum sienpiapul Aq sigesn Jo 03
81qIssad0e Ajipead aie sanioe) Suisixe 1eyy ainsug

‘souendwos yqy
21euIplood 01 safojdws 9qisuodsal e ayeugisag

VAV 2Y3 SuiLIaou09 S92130U 9PINOIg

«S9lonod

Mneys a8anon 1elIauay),,

a3 ‘sduenduwiod ensiyoe o) “(,yay.) POpUSWIY SY ‘0661 JO10Y | g UORO8S 0} gL'

SaniIgesIg yim suedliswy ay yum Ajdwod jeys aganod ayy |  Aonod maN ppy

e8en3ue d/d JlaquinN d/d asenguei d/d 1qwinN d/d

fonod IN3HHND




pue €/61 J0 10y uohelljigeyay
9y} JO 706 uohoes

Japun AJljenb oym siuspnis

03 Loddns sapiao.ad aganon
Aunwwo) syiypues a8a0D
ay) Aq palosuods sanianoe

Jo sweigoid ul uoReUILLILIDSIP
‘0} pa1oafgns 40 ‘J0 suyouaq

9U3 paluap ‘uj uonedoied sy
WOl papnioxe aq Nim jenplaipul
ON “Ainigesip yons jo uoseal Aq
A@10s Anjigesip e yum jenpiapu
payyienb asimiaylo Aue

1sulege a1eullWIoSIp 10U S20pP
agan09 Alunwiwo) s)iypues

CERITVETS
Hoddng
faniqesiq
pue
suonejndod
jevadg

£ Aonod

*91q1SS2208 SoNIAI0R
pue sweioid ‘sa0IMSS jew 01 9AROBYS Ajjenbe
aJe 1ey} spoijiswl Isy10 y3noiy) 10 saiyjioey ul sagueyo
1ein3oniis ysnoiy salljiqesip yum sienpiaipul Ag agesn
1o 01 91giss@ooe AjIpeal ale sannoe) Sullsixa leyy aunsug g

*aouendwod
vav 91euiplood o1 sahkojdws sjqisuodsal e s1eudisaq °Z

VAV 841 BUILISOU0D SAO0U 9PINCId L
meys e8anj00

ay ‘aouendwod aAsiyoe o1 *(,¥AV.) PepusWY Sy ‘0661 JO 19V
ssinigesiqg yum suesuswy ayy yum Ajdwoo neys agenon sy

8L°Z yorew

o1 agengue)
agueyo

pue .sannigesiq
Yyum suesiawiy,,
o181

€'y Aonod asinay

GZE-0LL "1'd ‘LOLZL § 'S'O'N Z¥ :90uala)aYy 1833

‘(swuspnis) JuswisseleH pue uoneuIWLOSIq — 7L Aonod

o (sesfojdws) Juswsseieq pue uoRBUIWILOSI] — /£1°G Ad1j0d
ySnouy) pessalppe ag jeys Juswsse.ey

io uopeuiwposip Anigesip  Suluidouod  suonefene W

'siedA (g) 9aiy1 10) ongnd ay) 01 a\gejeae
U ew pue UONENIBAB-JBS BYl uleuiBW M 9891100 By

"swiesgold pue sany)ioe) sy Jo upne
Anigisseooe ue ul ae3ue awil 03 swi) woly Aew aenon syj

"S9OIAIBS pue
spie Aienixne s1eudosdde jo Suysiuing sy Suipnjoul




«S90IN0SaYy

J1eys 989100 uewiny,,
ays ‘eduendwiod ersiyoe o) *(,¥AV.) PEpPUSWY SY ‘0661 JO10Y | G uonoss 03 gz g
Seiligesia yum suedlswy oyl yum Adwoo yieys egenon ayy | Aonod MaN ppy

‘(Yav) 0661 010y
Sa1Iges|g Yum suedliswy sy

G2E-0LL "7'd “LOLZL § 'S"O'N 2 :90uBIs)RY jeeT

*(syuspnis) uawisseleH pue UoReUILILISI] — L't Aonog

10 (seshojdwa) Juswisseleq pue uoleuIWLIOSI] — /'S AdN0d
Y8noayy pessaippe a4 Jjeys juswisse.ey

10 uoneujwuosip  Amigesip  Suiuisouod  suonegspe Y

'slead (g) 931y Joy ongnd ay3 o3 siqejieae
Y ejew pue uoneneas-j8s 8yl ulelulew m a8e109 ayj

"swieigoid pue sannioey si Jo upne
Aniqisseooe ue ut s3eBus swi 0} sw woly Aew 981109 ay)

*S92IAI9S pue spie Alefixne a1eudoldde
40 Buiysiuiny sy) SUIpPNIoUI ‘S19Y10 YLIM SUOIIEDIUNLULLOD
Se 9A1109Y3 se ale psjgesip aie oym suoslad yum
suonesnwwo jeyl ainsus 0} sdals eyeudoidde axe] -9

‘sanNIgesip Yyum sienpiaipul paynenb
J0 spasu sy) 01 seudosdde Sumes peieifeiun 1sow
3yl ul sapiAnoe pue ‘swejgold ‘S8OIAISS JRISILIWPY ‘G

"paiayo Suiaq Auanoe Jo weidoid ‘eoinies Aue Suifofus
Aenba pue Anny wouy sannigesip yum sjenpiapul
J0 sse)o Aue Jo sapijigesip UM SjenpIAIpUl IN0 US310S
01 SpU®} 0 1IN0 SUBBIS 1By eULIID ANIgISNe s1eulwng




'sieah (g) @a1y1 10} ongnd ayi 03 8ge)jiene
1 8jew pue uonenieAs-§8s syl uleluiew m a8ey100 syl

‘swiesgoud pue sapioe) s) Jo upne
Aniqissedoe ue ul 83eus swin 01 swiy woly Aew age1j0n ay]

*S80IAI8S pue spie Asefjixne a1eudosdde
jo Bulysiuiny ayy Suipnoul ‘S19YI0 YIIM SUOREDIUNWIWOD
Se 9AI109)J9 se ale pajgesip aie oym suosiod yum
suoneodiunwwo eyl ainsus o1 sdals ayendosdde aye] -9

"SalIGesIP Yum sienpiipul payijenb
Jo spssu ayy 01 sreudoidde Sumes palesgeiul 1sow
3yl ul senianoe pue ‘swes8old ‘sadines JoISIUIUPY ‘G

"paIayo Sulsq Auanoe Jo welgoud ‘eoinies Aue Suikofua
Anenba pue Apny woiy sennigesip yuM sjenpiApul
40 sse|o Aue 1o senngesip Yyum SIENPIAIpUI 1IN0 USSI0S
03 Spu?} J0 1IN0 SUBBITS 1BY) BLIBIIO AINiqiBne sleulung v

*9]01SS902k SolANOR
pue suweigold ‘seoInSS axew 0} 8ANoaYS Ajenbe
ale 1ey} spoyisw Jsy1o ygnoiyy 1o sanioey ul segueys
1e4n1onis Ysnoiyl senniqesip yum sienplaipul Ag sjgesn
10 01 9)qIss200e AjIipeal sie semyioe) SunsIxa Jeylainsug g

‘2ouendwod
vayv 8leulpiood o) sefoldwe a\gisuodsal e aleudiseq Z

YAV 9Y1 SuluI9oU0D S83N0U BPINOId 'L




GZE-0LL "1'd ‘LOLCL § 'S'O'N ¢ :9dualejay jede

‘(sjuspnis) uswisseseH pue uoneuIwLosSIq -1 7 Aonod

Jo (seehoidwie) uswsseleH pue uopeuwWLOSI ~ £ 1°S AoNod
y8nouy1 passaippe aq 1)eys Juswisseley

Jo uoneuiwuosip  Aujgesip  Suiuiedouod  suonefene v




Consent Agenda Guidelines

Sandhills Community College Board of Trustees
28 October 2025

Definition

A consent agenda is a tool used to streamline board meetings by grouping routine, non-
controversial, informational items into a single agenda item. These items generally do not
require board action and are approved collectively without discussion unless a board
member requests removal for separate consideration. Consent agenda items may
occasionally include items requiring board action, but these should be limited to routine,
non-controversial approvals (e.g. approval of a holiday schedule which follows the state
holiday guidelines).

Governance Notes
e Thefinal Board agenda is set by the Chair and the President, in accordance with the
Board’s bylaws.
¢ Any Board member may request that an item be removed from the consent agenda
and discussed separately.

Criteria for Inclusion

ltems may be placed on the consent agenda if they meet all of the following:
1. Informational Only — No vote or formal Board action is require (with limited
exceptions).
2. Routine or Recurring — Appears regularly on agendas and does not involve
significant changes.
3. Non-Controversial - No anticipated debate or dissent.
4. Committee Reviewed - Vetted and accepted by the appropriate committee.

Committee-Specific Examples (not all-inclusive)

1. Finance, Personnel, and Planning
¢ Monthly budget summaries (without action)
e Staff turnover reports
¢ Routine planning updates (e.g., strategic plan milestones)

2. Educational Programs and Student Affairs
¢ Program updates not requiring approval

3. Buildings and Grounds
e Facilities maintenance updates
¢ Capital project status reports (informational only)
e Safety inspections or compliance summaries



4. Governance

Meeting schedules
BylLaws changes which are clerical in nature, as allowed by the ByLaws.

Items Not Suitable for Consent Agenda (not all-inclusive)

items requiring Board action, approval, or formal vote (with limited exceptions)
Matters involving contracts, legal issues, or policy changes

High-level, mid-year budget adjustments

Topics with strategic impact, public interest, or potential controversy

Major program changes.

Iltems not reviewed by the relevant committee

Implementation Guidance

Committee chairs should identify items suitable for a consent agenda during their
meetings.

The President’s Office will compile the consent agenda and, once approved by the
Chair, circulate it with the board packet.

Information in the Board packet for consent agenda items should include a clear
title and summary (if necessary) to make clear what the item/reportis.

Trustees may request removal of any item for individual discussion.



AJyIuou oyemdnyy jjim,

8EILI'T6V SOAIISIY) YSE) Ajuno))
Y%y LE £0°18T°SOLY L6'99T°9%bT $  00°8FP1SS9 $ spung Apuno) TVI0L
%6L°8T S7°888°67S SL'LOTVIT $  00°9ST'HHL $ superddQ Ayuno) NOH TVIOL

awdmby gz6
%3¢°€¢ 0S°$99°T1 STSP8°S SLOTIS L1 SupoERUO) FOUBULIONS] (16
%89°8C SLTTTBIS 0S'TTY 80T STSH99TL uone1dd( ueld 079/019
UNERAQ JURLIN) - Spunj Ajuno)) ooy

%Eh'8€ 8LT6E'SLS'E TT668°1€TT $  00°T6T°L08‘S $ Supeiad Huno)) 3100 TVIOL

00°0 - - jmswdinbg (g6
%8¢ €€ FS PO 1TT 1L°650°TTT STHOLTES Sunoenuo)) soURWION™] (16
%95°8¢ 677007058 1L°890°1T8 00°69T°1S€°1 SouBUSMEBIA JUB[] 079
%99°9¢ SO°LES'L6T'T 0L'€8L°6TE T SLOTELTYE uoneadQ Jueld 019
Y%EhPS 06°010°97C 01°L86°69C 00°'866°S61 UONBSIUIUPY [BISUSD) (€]

0T ‘1€ 1990300 ySnoy nodoy jeroueury
$9918NI], JO pIeoyg
a3afj0) Ayunumwo)) syIypues
%EL 1€ 1S°€96'SPETT 8P ISP 001°01 $  00°SIFOPPIE $ SANNA ALVIS TV.LOL
%8%'¢ 91°LTI°60T‘1 ¥8 109°ct $  00°6TLTSTY $
%I 11 €7 15898 LLITY I 00°€LT°86 syoog
%6L'7 €6'SLTTTIT LO'081°TE 00°95F" #ST1°1 juswdmbyg
%¥T T 9€'9€8°9€1° 1T ¥9°68°950°01 $  00989°€6I°IE $ TVIOL
%$8°T¢ 60°08€°L€8°T 16'969°868 00'LLO'9ELT yoddng 1uspnyg 005
%SSPE 6L0V6'SLIT 17°8€4°0S1°1 00°6L£°67€°C woddng smuspeoy 00t
%EEC 1€ ILPL1°0S8'T 6T°9LT°00€°T 00 ISFOSTP uoIsud)xy [euonednodQ 00¢
%IT6T 60°017°9L 01 16°881°CEH 00°66€°6L1°ST UOLONYSU] WN[NOLLINY 00¢
%98°Tt 89785861 T€'£66°865 00'THS L6E°1 (UIpPY) SWaISAS “oyuy ol
%7 6€ 69°T68°LLE T T€'6LL°638 00°7L9°L9T'T UoHenSIIIUPY [RISUSD) 0€1
%LE']E Py 110V0Y 9$'¥96 16T 00°9.5°559 SOIAISG [BIOURUL] 0z1
%€1°9¢ LYLLYEY6 €1 TI6°CES 00°06S°LLY'T Juowsgeue A 9ANNIIXY 011
aasn HONVIVE STANLIANAIXA LAodng
% LInang a-1-X

$T0T ‘1€ 1990100 y3noxy ], uodeyy [eroueury
S39)SNI], JO pIeog
agaio) Ayrunmmo)) s[Eypues



Status of State and County Bond Funds

as of October 2025

Project Expended Remaining
Project Description Budget To Date Balance
County Bond Funds
Health Sciences Building $20,000,000.00 $20,000,000.00
Caddell Training Center 1,100,000.00 128,485.19 971,514.81
Meyer Hall 1,009,310.00 1,009,310.00

$22,109,310.00 $21,137,795.19 $971,514.81

A
A

LEARN « ENGAGE = BELONG



Status of OSBM Funds

as of October 31, 2025

Project Expended Remaining
Project Description Budget To Date Balance
OSBM Funds
MIHS/Workforce Trades $25,000,000.00 $146,555.00  $24,853,445.00

Interest earned to date

$1,309,088.15

LEARN « ENGAGE » BELONG



"ZTT 341 YySnouya passaoold aJe pue pieog aieis 341 Aq 5989|100 03 pazedojje aue jey; spuny jesapay4 sapnpuj,

- $ - $ - s - $ (saamypuadx3 - sanuanay '1s3) 19N]
¥00'9€5°0S S 9L8'Ip9'TT $ 8rr'1SS9 S 089zhe‘ze S saimipuadx3 pajadpng jejoy
8€6'SEE’T $ 000°00T S - S BE6'SETT $ (s3uawano.dwy levides Suipnpaxe) Aeyng [erded xxg
8818059 $ 881°80S‘9 S - S - $ PIV 1USPNIS XX8
- $ - S - S - $ RyI0/Aeiaudog Xy
LL¥'S590°9 S LTo'OoT S 0SP’'S50°9 S - S "B 18 suonjesadQ Jue|d XX9
805069 S Zev'ool s - S 9.0'065C $ Hoddns Juspnis xxs
L88'€8LT S - $ - $ L88°€8L°C S Hoddng ajwapesy xxi
L8T°99%'y S TE6'STY S - S 952°/b0'v S uozesNp3 BuINUIUO) XXE
€09°0£0°81 S TBEYET s - S 12Z2'C89'91 S UONDMIISU| Wnindung XXz
912'659'8 S 916°SST'S S 866'S6h S Z0E'€00's S yoddng |euoiininsup xxt
(s303foud Juawanoaduwy {eided Suipnjoxa) saimypuadx3 jo Atewwing
#00°9£5°0S S 98'Tv9'TT S 8vP'TSS9 $ 089'zbeze $ 3|qejjeAy spuny jeyo)
- S - S - S pajelidosddy sauejeg puny
¥00'9€5°05 S 9/8TI¥9'TT S 8rv'1ss9 S 089'Zyeze S [e301qns anuanay Sunessdp
9L8'TV9'IT S 9/8'Tv9'1T ) spun4 [euonninsy|
8Y¥'165'9 S 8¥1'TSS'9 S spuny Axuno)
089'tve‘ze S 089°Zre'ze S £21815
(s323f0.d Juawano.diuy jeyydes Bujpnjoxa) sanusnay jo Aewwing
198png ej04, 123png jeuonninsul 198png Ajuno) 128png ajers
14 € [4 T
848 MaquinN uonnipsu|
983103 Allunwwioy s||1ypues :aweN abajjon
(S123f0¥d INIWIAOHINI TVLIdVD DNIGNTOXT)
139an89 ¥Z-£20Z A1393110)
a8ed Asewwing

NZ1SAS 353110 ALINNININOD YNITOHYD HLYON

{6102Z-1T ‘noY) T-2d0a



| Jo | abed abed ainjeudbis |-z 00Q

‘ueuLijeys ¢

‘Aunon J0 siduolssiuwon Ajunon ayy Aq

0Z° uo $ O Junowe ay)

ul panoidde pue pamaiasa usasq sey jJebpng abajjon paysene ayL

‘ueuwleys ¢

J0 saajsni] jo pieog ayj Aq 0z
uo paaoidde pue pamsiral usaq sey }abpng o609 paysene ay |

440-NOIS 1S3ND3Y 139Aang A3JINOIA

9¢-5¢0¢ Ad :139dn9 393711092
W3L1SAS 3937709 ALINNWINOD VYNITOYVI HLYON



THE TRUSTEES OF SANDHILLS COMMUNITY COLLEGE

December 2, 2025
INFORMATION ITEMS
CHIEF OF STAFF DIVISION

New Hires Effective Date
Sara Holden — Director, Small Business Center November 3, 2025

Separations Effective Date
None

COLLEGE OPERATIONS DIVISION

New Hires Effective Date
Dondiego Blanco - Maintenance Tech HVAC October 1, 2025

Carol Hough — IT Infrastructure Analyst November 3, 2025

Separations Effective Date
None

Retirements Effective Date
William “Billy” Barber - Information Technology Analyst II January 1, 2026
George Bridschge — Maintenance Technician January 1, 2026

EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMS DIVISION

New Hires Effective Date
Sara Seyl - Librarian for Technical Services and Archives October 3, 2025

Separations Effective Date
Robert Wilson — Associate Professor, English December 10, 2025

Retirements Effective Date

Tammy Stewart - Dean of Learning Resources November 1, 2025

Sarah Bumgarner - Professor, Management & Business Technology and Coordinator,
Entrepreneurship January 1, 2026



ENGAGEMENT DIVISION

New Hires
None

Separations
Julia McRae - Grant Writer & Corporate Giving Development Officer

STUDENT SERVICES DIVISION

New Hires

Kaitlin Jones - Student Life Associate
Tyler Payne - College Navigator
Sarah Merkle — NC Career Coach

Separations
None

Effective Date

Effective Date
October 28, 2025

Effective Date
October 6, 2025
October 8, 2025

November 3, 2025

Effective Date



A

Sandhﬂls

COMMUNITY COLLEGE

CONTINUING EDUCATION

Accountability & Integrity Plan
2023-2025

Approved

October 2022 BOT meeting

Sandhills Community College

Workforce Continuing Education



Introduction: Accountability & Integrity Planning for Workforce Continuing Education

Accountability and integrity planning within Workforce Continuing Education (WCE) areas
encompasses a broad range of areas guided by state and college governance, NC Community
College System initiatives, institutional and program values, and industry and community
partnerships. NC Community Colleges are mandated through the State Board of Community
College Code (1B SBCCC 400.98, 1D SBCCC 300.4) to establish a program accountability
function that will:

(1) Establish a framework for defining quality, effectiveness, and assessment for
improvement,

(2) Demonstrate a system of checks and balances to prevent and detect errors or
irregularities when reporting enroliment, attendance, and instructional hours for FTE
purposes.

(3) Be reviewed by a college’s local board of trustees at least once every three years.

The following document is the Accountability and Integrity Plan for Sandhills Community
College Workforce Continuing Education. The plan’s framework was developed based on a
state-wide accountability model for short-term workforce training.

The accountability and integrity planning framework encompasses three primary areas:

1. Governance Priorities
2. Academic integrity
3. Market Outreach

For each area, there is at least one goal and objective with WCE accountability measures.
Importantly, the plan reflects the college’s ongoing effort to:

Review WCE training programs and offerings for relevancy, rigor, and quality.
Develop goals for growth and sustainability.

Ensure state budget compliance and operational accountability.

Respond to demands for aligning programs with a broad array of governing
requirements and industry needs.

PN

Each spring term, the college trustees will receive an accountability and integrity report
providing annual updates to outlined objectives. Every three years in the fall, the planis
updated, and new objectives may be added with guidance and approval from WCE’s
accountability and integrity team or senior administrators.

The updated plan will go before the college trustees for approval based on a State Board
Community College Code mandate and will remain in effect for a three-year cycle.

2|Page



Respectfully submitted,

Kimberty J. Blue

Kimberly Blue

Senior Director of Compliance and Accountability, Worlforce Continuing Education
Sandhills Community College
September 16, 2022

Accountability & Integrity Planning for Workforce Continuing Education

Sandhills Community College

3|Page



2023-25 Workforce Continuing Education {WCE)

Accountability & Integrity Team

Staff Members and Area of Representation:

Isabel Cain College and Career Readiness

Denise Cameron Public Safety Training

Sandy Perry Allied Health Training

Jason Levister Student Success, High School Programs, and Data Support
Amy Caliri Registration Services

Standing Members:

Dr. Fallon Brewington Vice President
Michelle Bauer Associate Vice President
Kimberly Blue Sr. Director, Compliance

Team Purpose: Staff representing WCE programs and service areas will be represented on this
team. Members will contribute to the development of accountability and integrity processes
by:

1. Providing guidance and suggestions for improvement to current accountability practices
among WCE areas.

2. Identifying new accountability measures for areas not specifically addressed in
community college code, coliege, or WCE policies.

Team Members: The internal team membership for accountability and integrity planning will
rotate program representatives every three years; membership will include at ieast one College
and Career Readiness staff member. The team meets once each term and as needed.

(A & | Team, Page 1 of 1)

4|Page



GOVERNANCE PRIORITIES

Goal 1: Demonstrate accountability and credibility of operational functions

The responsibility for ensuring operations provide effective and efficient services, resources,
and programs.,

OBIJECTIVE: Establish standards and controls responsible for administrative, training, and
student support operations.

ACCOUNTABILITY MEASURES:
M-1. WCE has established an operational framework that inciudes:

1. Senior leadership team

Student registration and intake services

Training programs and offerings

Student support services

Accountability and compliance management practices

vk wN

M-2. Operational responsibilities are divided into administrative units and training programs
each under the direction of a director or coordinator. Processes for administrative tasks and
training are established and updated to ensure student progress, service or program
effectiveness and efficiency. Roles and responsibilities are established for each area. Business
continuity and succession plans are established and maintained.

M-3. Course training, design, and development are initiated by program directors with
guidance and approval from senior WCE administration and the state if required. Program or
course design is conducted through a collaboration of subject matter experts and may include
curriculum departments, community college system advisors, local advisory councils or boards,
industry associates, and education partners.

M-4. Fiscal management is overseen by senior WCE leadership and each director overseeing a
program or service area budget. Budget reviews are conducted annually with guidance from
the college Business Office. Budget priorities are determined for programs during the annual
program review cycle. Budget items are integrated into the college’s strategic plan of
operations.

M-5. Standards and procedures for all operations are developed and strengthened through
strategic planning and assessment. WCE develops internal standards and best business
practices that adhere to reguiations and policies set by federal, state, college, and program
accreditation agencies.

Supporting Activities and Documentation

5)Page



6fPage

1. WCE unit operational procedures
2. Job Descriptions, WCE organizational chart
3. Business Continuity and Succession Plans
4. Course approvals
5. Annual Program Reviews
6. WCE Operational Areas - chart
Workforce Continuing Education Operational Areas
Marketing, : Training Programs Centralized | Administration | Student Facilities
Recruitment, | Systems Academic & Management
Outreach Support
. ] Services
Commun-i_t-;l, | Adult Li?é?éé{/, Information, | Program | Advising Testing Centers,
patrons College and Career | Guidance, Development certified
Readiness Referrals classrooms
Currentand | Pre-employmen_t,—-m Admissions, |Fiscal | Financial Public Safé'ty
potential Career Development | Placement Management | Aid/Scholarships | Training Center
students _
Business and ghG_éri-eraI Occupation | Business Accountability | High School Advanced
workforce | certifications Services, and Student Support | Manufacturing
partners Accounting Compliance | Center
Industry | Bridge and Pati'\way Course and Strategic Collaboration ‘-TEon—sEfuction—__
Associations | Programs student Planning & with support Trades building
intake Outcomes partners
| system assessment
Education Businessand '_T”raining l Reporting Career Technology Center |
Partners Technologies design and Development
| development Services
Advisory Allied Health Hiring h Grant-writing Hoke Center
Groups | Public Safety Classrooms and
| Career units
Community | Advanced | Records Professional Counseling Robbins Center
service work | Manufacturing, Retention Development _
and ' Construction Trades | System and training Employment '
collaborations | Customized Training | Online Succession placement Small Business [
- training Planning & Center
Small Business development | Business Work-based
services and learning | Continuity learning
i Cultural Enrichment | management ' - Lifelong Learniﬁg
| and Community | systems Internships Institute/St.
| Service ' Joseph




GOVERNANCE PRIORITIES

Goal 2: Demonstrate administrative and program accountability for data reported to the state.

The responsibility of meeting compliance to NC General Statues and NC State Board of
Community College Code relevant to data reported for state budget resources.

Objective 1: Maintain effective accountability processes and internal controls to ensure
compliance and eligibility for federal or state funding.

Objective 2: Data submitted to state will be eligible for budget resources.

Objective 3: No material findings identified in internal or external compliance reviews or audits.

Objective 4: Respond effectively to non-compliance issues, both material and non-material,
identified in external compliance examinations or audits.

ACCOUNTABILITY MEASURES:

M-1.

M-2:

M-3.

Best business practices are designed to meet student needs, maintain efficiency, and
uphold compliance to external regulations and college policies. Specific standards and
processes are determined with guidance and support from the senior director of
compliance and monitored for effectiveness through various internal controls and
measures.

Reporting student enroliment and instructional hours is conducted by the senior
director of compliance and accountability. An internal audit process with a system of
checks and balances is conducted each term. The ICR-FTE report process and submission
is handled solely by the senior director.

Determining and correcting data discrepancies and irregularities is managed by the
senior director with support from program and registration staff. Current term and post-
term adjustments are made and reported by the senior director in accordance with
SBCCC regulations for eligible and earned FTE.

Monitoring activities and data checkpoints are established for administrative units and
programs to ensure enrollment, accounting, and instructional data are compliant for
state reporting; this includes detecting course and registration errors and data
irregularities.

Standardized and specialized reports are identified, shared, and processed for
monitoring enrollment and instruction to support state reporting requirements. The
senior director provides support and guidance to programs and administrative units for
these processes.

7fPage




M-4,

Course data and records are submitted for state reporting and maintained for
compliance reviews. All original course records are subject to a retention and disposition
schedule established by the N.C. Community College System (NCCCS) and followed
accordingly.

External compliance reviews and visits are coordinated and supported by the senior
director of compliance.

Compliance Services Recommendations are reviewed and implemented according to
the NCCCS compliance examiner instructions. Follow-up activities are conducted and

monitored for improvements and effectiveness. These items will be documented and
addressed in the following review period.

Supporting Activities and Documentation:

Call R

Compliance Program Document

Compliance Review Report/Letter to President

Enrollment and FTE Accountability Procedures

Accountability and Integrity Plan Part il: Enrollment, Hours, and FTE Checklists by
Program

8|Page



GOVERNANCE PRIORITIES

Goal 3: Demonstrate accountability to program accreditations and regulations.

The responsibility of meeting program standards as defined by federal, state, or industry
agencies.

Objective 1: Program accreditations and standards are met.

ACCOUNTABILITY MEASURES:
M-1. College and Career Readiness (CCR)

SCC is an authorized testing center for High School Equivalency; recertification
coordinated by director and testing specialist. The program is approved for and
maintains Title Il funding. Authorization requirements are monitored by the director of
College and Career Readiness.

M-2. Fire & Rescue

Accredited by the N.C. Fire and Rescue Commission (NCFRC) to deliver Firefighter, Driver
Operator, Technical Rescue, Fire & Life Safety Preparedness, Fire Officer, and Instructor
Methodology; all fire certification classes delivered are OFSM certified. Accreditation
requirements are monitored by the program director and supported by the Fire
academy director.

M-3. Advanced Manufacturing & Construction Trades

SCC is an authorized testing site for National Center for Construction Education and
Research (NCCER), Manufacturing Skills Standard Council (MSSC), and the Electrical
Trades Association (ETA). Records of all courses, schedules, student assessment and
performance are reported to NCCER and MSSC as required.

The Advanced Manufacturing program coordinator is a registered MSSC Test
proctor/administrator.

All industry authorizations are managed and updated by the advanced manufacturing
and construction trades directors.

M-4. Real Estate Licensure Training

N.C. Real Estate Commission authorizes SCC to provide pre and post real estate
licensure classes. Class visitation is required and performed by the director. New
instructors must meet special requirements for instructor credentialing that are guided
by the college director. Current real estate instructor is highly qualified and meets

9jPage



M-6.

M-9:

M-10:

instructor certification standards. Program authorization requirements are monitored
and updated by the senior director of Career Training.

Nurse Aide Level 1

Workforce Continuing Education is a state-authorized provider for the Nurse Aide Level
1 program with state-approved classrooms. The curriculum program coordinator
oversees the program with the WCE director of allied health.

Automotive Safety and OBD Emissions Control

NC Department of Transportation approves SCC to conduct automotive safety training.
Student training verification process in place guided by agency. All instructors are
certified. Requirements and compliance monitored by the senior director of career
training.

DSS Food and Nutrition Services and Employment Training (FN&ET) WIOA Program

SCC is an authorized state partner with the Moore County Department of Social Services
to provide short-term employment training and support services for Moore County
students receiving food and nutrition services. This includes maintaining a full-time
director to coordinate education services and resources for students.

Certified Medical Assistant Program

SCCis the only N.C. community college certified to offer Medical Assisting in workforce
continuing education through the Commission on Accreditation of Allied Health
Education Programs (CAAHEP). The college received an initial accreditation and will be
reviewed based on updated requirements in 2024.

Law Enforcement Training

SCC is approved by N.C. Criminal Justice Standards and Department of Corrections to
offer specialized law enforcement training. Both Moore and Hoke County sheriff
associations also approve specific college facilities and courses.

Emergency Medical Training

SCCis approved by the N.C. Office of Emergency Medical Services (NCOEMS) to provide
the EMT basic program and EMT and EMS skills courses. WCE has a curriculum EMS
advisor to contribute to the oversight of the program, along with the WCE senior
director of public safety, as required by NCOEMS standards.

Supporting Activities & Documentation

1.
2.
3.

Program accreditations
Program and facility approvals
Program review documentation: program services and facilities

10|Page



ACADEMIC INTERESTS

Goal:

Instructional programs will demonstrate relevancy, rigor, and student success.

Responsibility to provide quality training that is relevant to student learning and
workforce needs.

Objective 1: Occupational courses will be designed to provide relevant instruction, resources,
and technology that prepare students for the workforce or continued education.

Objective 2: The division will utilize a formal program review process to measure and
demonstrate program relevancy, improvements, and student successes.

ACCOUNTABILITY MEASURES:

M-1.

WCE Course Development: Occupational, college and career readiness, community
service, and personal enrichment courses are designed to provide students with the
necessary knowledge and skills to promote and progress their transition to employment
or continued education. Course planning includes input from program directors,
credentialed instructors, leadership, curriculum and other education partners, program
advisory boards, affiliated agencies, and industry partners.

Instructor Hiring and Development is initiated by program directors with approval from
college administration. Hiring processes are designed to seek and obtain the most highly
qualified individuals demonstrating a combination of workforce and education
experience and expertise. Program directors will coordinate recruitment efforts with
industry and education partners to obtain a qualified candidate pool. Professional
development is also coordinated and monitored to ensure instructors receive any
specialized training or updates for their area.

CE programs conduct annual program review processes to analyze operations and
resources in areas of personnel, training services, facilities and equipment, and
information technology. Program staff contribute to campus-wide planning events to
share information and resources. Program reviews encompass budget priorities that will
support instructional objectives and program progress. Importantly, they assess
program performance outcomes in areas of student learning and administrative
operations.

Remediation and Support: WCE provides offerings that prepare students for higher
level training and career paths. The College and Career Readiness program provides
math and literacy opportunities to WCE and curriculum students seeking entry into
specialized training programs.

11jPage



M-5.

M-8.

Student progress monitoring is conducted through multiple measures. These include
term reviews and data collection processes. Outcomes are used for planning and
improvement and initiate departmental changes. Student learning data and outcomes
are reviewed and addressed during the annual program review cycle. Outcomes will
include employment tracking when data is available.

Workforce Continuing Education College and Career Promise Classes (WCE-CCP) are
addressed through Student Progress Assessments conducted for high school education
partners.

Flexible offerings: WCE provides hybrid, online, evening, and weekend offerings for
student convenience. This includes self-paced offerings and training that provides
students access to introductory or exploratory courses that assess their interests and
skill levels.

Class Visitation & Class Monitoring: Program directors evaluate classroom instruction
and student engagement through first-hand observation. This process supports
instructor and student success.

Program and Course Evaluations are conducted on a strategic and ongoing basis and
provide an opportunity for students, instructors, advisors, employers, and other
partners to provide input and feedback. Forms of program and course evaluations
involve skills-based assessments, employer observations of students at job sites, and
monitoring visits. Evaluation feedback from external agencies provide opportunities to
make substantive changes.

Supporting Activities & Documentation

S o

Course syllabi

Program Reviews and Outcomes Assessments

CCR course records

Class Visitation Schedule and Summaries

Course evaluations

College Strategic Plan: WCE Program Services, Personnel, Facilities

12jPage



MARKET OUTREACH

Goal 1: Through outreach and collaboration, training programs are relevant and strong and
generate new opportunities for developing a skilled and marketable workforce.

Establish service area partnerships to support program planning, funding, and improvements.

Objective 1: Collaborate with education and industry partners, community organizations,
and businesses for identifying, developing, and improving training programs and courses.

Objective 2: Seek funding and resources that support enrollment into training programs.

ACCOUNTABILITY MEASURES:

M-1. Establish workforce partners in program-related areas and cultivate ongoing
collaboration to support training and program development. This includes service area
and regional businesses and industries and workforce development boards. (i.e.,
healthcare, manufacturing, and construction.)

M-2. Collaborate with community organizations and public service agencies to identify
populations and groups needing specific training. Develop curriculums and programs
that respond to training needs and student success. (i.e., customized training, College
and Career Readiness)

M-3. Collaborate with educational partners including curriculum areas, NCCCS colleges,
school systems, and state agencies to develop short-term training offerings that provide
opportunity and accessibility.

M-4.  Establish program advisory boards that will provide guidance and feedback for
developing, sustaining, and improving career training and college readiness curriculums.

M-5. Conduct research with educational and workforce partners to assess new career
training opportunities ensuring relevancy and sustainability.

M-6. Work with education and workforce partners to obtain funding and resources that
support high-demand and costly training programs.

Supporting Activities & Documentation

1. Workforce Advisory Boards
2. Program Advisory Boards
3. High School meetings

4. Grants

13| Page



Goal 2: Workforce Continuing Education College Career Pathway (WCE-CCP) programs
provide Moore and Hoke County high school students with career training opportunities.

Objective 1: Collaborate with the local service area high schools and the Department of
Public Instruction and Career Technical Education areas to provide quality, skills-based
training programs for local high school students.

ACCOUNTABILITY MEASURES:

M-1. A WCE-CCP director oversees the workforce continuing education college and career
promise pathways (WCE-CCP) program and serves as the primary liaison between the
Continuing Education Division and service area high schools.

M-2. A state-approved application process is utilized and appropriately followed.

M-3. Student recruitment is strategic and facilitated in collaboration among the director,
continuing education program staff, college admissions department, college recruiters,
and the local high school.

M-4. WCE-CCP program compliance documentation including applications and approvals are
maintained and monitored by the NCCCS, director and the senior director of compliance
and accountability.

M-5.  An addendum process for non-substantive changes has been established for existing
WCE-CCP pathways.

M-6. Director monitors and maintains student eligibility and gathers relating documentation
with respect to the SBCCC requirements and compliance processes.

M-7.  Director monitors enrollment and success rates to support WCE-CCP planning and
improvement. Director collaborates with students, school staff, and college program
staff to ensure student retention and success are supported.

Supporting Activities & Documentation

Director’s Job Description and planning calendar

Student files with approval documents and recommendations

Moore and Hoke County Schools’ WCE-CCP application pathways and state approvals
WCE-CCP course records

Student progress data

LA

14|Page




The Vice President of Workforce Continuing Education is submitting this document on behalf
of the department and college to the college president and college board of trustees for
approval.

\Un k.ﬂ‘r

4 Lo _Aind

Dr. Fallon Brewington, Vice President Workforce Continuing Education

Sandhills Cornmunity College

o s e
L

Date

The 2023-25 Accountability and Integrity Plan has been reviewed and approved by the
Sandhills Community College Board of Trustees.

Dr. John DemMrd?iHs Community College President

g4/ 33

P | . AN~

~ N
Sandhills Communiw):ollege Board of Trustees Representative

bte )0 ~C- 02—

Date

Kimberly Blue will submit the approved plan to the NC Community College System Office.

15fPage



November 13, 2025
Holden Named New Small Business Center Director at Sandhills Community College

(Pinehurst, NC) — Taking her decades-long experiences as a small business owner of
multiple businesses in North Carolina and upstate New York, leadership and service in the
United States Airforce, and management of family businesses, Sara Holden has assumed
the helm as Director of the Small Business Center at Sandhills Community College. The
program is part of the North Carolina Community College system and offered free of
charge to anyone in the community looking to start their own business.

“Entrepreneurialism has always been a part of my family’s DNA,” said the New York native.
“From candy and bead making to carpentry to popcorn to art and farming, I’ve had my
hands in all aspects of start-ups and successful companies. Bringing my skillset to others
in the community is exciting and | look forward to jumping in and meeting folks in Hoke and
Moore counties who can use the support and skill sets that our program offers.”

Holden brings management, leadership, communications, project management,
organizational, time management, and goal setting to the table as part of her of outreach to
citizens in the community who are interested in pursuing their dreams and making a
difference in their communities. While her office is located on the Pinehurst campus,
future business owners can expect to see her on the road in their communities.

“We want to come to where the business entrepreneurs are and work around their
schedules moving forward,” said Taylor McCaskill, Senior Director of Workplace
Development and Corporate Training. “We know folks are working while planning a new
business or growing their business and we’re aiming to be more convenient and responsive
to their needs.”

Holden is excited to start networking and be the connector of services from Sandhills
Community College to the region as small businesses ramp up and sustain. “It’s an ever-



evolving process from concept to execution and between,” she said. “l hope to jump in
where they need me and offer support toward continued success and momentum.”

Plans also include looking into more agricultural opportunities to support farmers,
tourism, and possible lodging opportunities throughout Moore and Hoke counties. “l want
to be an extension of what they are working on and see our how our tools and services can
make an impact.”

Holden holds a Bachelor of Arts from Columbia College in Columbia, Missouri and is an
honorably discharged veteran at the rank of Staff Sergeant. She received numerous
accommodation, longevity, and awards of excellence and proficiency. She is married and a
mother of three adult children.

Holden can be reached at 910-695-3938 or holdens@sandhills.edu

More information about the Small Business Center at the Dedman Center for Business
Leadership can be found at https://www.sandhills.edu/wce/sbc.html



Board of Trustees
December 2, 2025, Meeting
Foundation Report

Last Fiscal Year 2025 Giving (07/01/2024 — 06/30/2025)

Total $3,191,777
1,127 gifts

This Fiscal Year to Date Giving (07/01/2025 — to 11/14/2025)

Total $1,277,937
498 Gifts

* Additional gifts are expected as December is the main giving season

Foundation:
e Our November 4™ Scholarship Dinner was very successful with positive feedback from
all attendees -

o Over 300 faculty, staff, student recipients, and donors in attendance

o Featured program this year: Early Childhood Education

o Student Speaker: Shanay Eason: Shanay is an adult learner with 4 children, owns
a licensed child care facility in Hoke County, plans to attend Fayetteville State
University upon graduation from Sandhills in May of 2026

® SCC Foundation Board Retreat on 10/27/2025 was very well received by Foundation
Board;
Topics —
o Dr. Stewart presented on his first two years in office “Top 10 Things Learned”
o Panel discussion on Workforce Innovation and One College

Annual Mailings: Brochures are available at your seat
e SCCF staff will be transitioning to Bloomrang which is a new donor-management
software scheduled for January 2026 following year-end giving season. There are several
benefits to this transition, including significant cost savings.

e BPAC sent its first campaign mailing — “Take Your Seat”

e The Sandhills Horticultural Gardens also enhanced their annual mailing efforts. The SHG
mails to its membership group each year asking for renewals and gifts; this year’s
brochure was redesigned to help encourage new membership: it will be available at
Garden events and highlights community engagement with the gardens as well as the
collaboration between the gardens and the Landscape Gardening Program

e SCC Foundation’s annual Impact Brochure has also been mailed and highlights SCC’s:
o CDL program
o Felton and Jean Capel contributions to the college and well known
Sandhills icons
o Veterans Programs
o Workforce Innovation Programs



Foundation Directors — new nominations for approval:
At the August 11, 2025 meeting of the SCC Foundation’s Executive Committee, Gary Evans and
Adam Kiker were approved to be nominated as SCC Foundation Board Members.

Gary Evans -

Many of you already know Gary Evans. Gary served on the Sandhills Community College BOT
for many years. Upon his rotation off the Trustee Board, Gary has expressed an interest in
staying connected with the college by joining the Foundation Board. Gary is one of Sandhills’
top cheerleaders, he and his wife Kathy attend every culinary lunch and introduce their friends to
all the SCC has to offer.

Adam Kiker - Bio TBR

**Requesting Motion from the Board to approve two new Foundation Board Members:

This concludes the Foundation’s report



